                                                               1

          1

          2    -------------------------------------X

          3         NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

          4

                        927 REALTY, LLC

          5

               -------------------------------------X

          6

          7

                                    August 11, 2011

          8                         9:15 a.m.

          9                         350 Front Street

                                    Hempstead, New York

         10

         11

         12

         13    B E F O R E :

         14

         15         FREDERICK E. PAROLA, Executive Director

         16         and Chief Executive Officer

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23                                     Irene Trignani

                                                 Court Reporter

         24

         25

                  Fevola Reporting & Transcription Inc. (631)724-7576

                                                               2

          1

          2    A P P E A R A N C E S:

          3

                    TOWN OF HEMPSTEAD INDUSTRIAL

          4         DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

                         Representing the Industrial

          5              Development Agency

                         350 Front Street

          6              Hempstead, New York  11550

          7         BY:  FREDERICK E. PAROLA, CEO

          8

          9

         10

         11

               ALSO PRESENT:

         12

               Michael Lodato, Deputy Agency Administrator

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

                  Fevola Reporting & Transcription Inc. (631)724-7576

                                                               3

          1                       Proceedings

          2                  MR. PAROLA:  It's 9:15 by

          3           my clock.  Notice of public

          4           hearing.  This is with respect to

          5           the public hearing which I am now

          6           opening on 927 Realty, LLC, a New

          7           York limited liability company on

          8           behalf of itself and/or the

          9           principal of 927 Realty, LLC.

         10                  I am going to now read the

         11           public hearing notice.  It reads:

         12           Notice of public hearing.  Notice

         13           is hereby given that a public

         14           hearing pursuant to Title 1 of

         15           Article 18-A of the New York State

         16           General Municipal Law will be held

         17           by the Town of Hempstead

         18           Industrial Development Agency (the

         19           "Agency") on the 11th day of

         20           August, 2011, at 9:15 a.m., local

         21           time, at 350 Front Street, Second

         22           Floor, IDA Conference Room,

         23           Hempstead, New York in connection

         24           with the following matters:

         25               927 Realty, LLC, a New York
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          2           limited liability company, on

          3           behalf of itself and/or the

          4           principals of 927 Realty, LLC

          5           and/or an entity formed or to be

          6           formed on behalf of the foregoing

          7           (collectively, the "Company") has

          8           applied to the Agency to enter

          9           into a transaction in which the

         10           Agency will assist in the (i)

         11           acquisition of an approximately

         12           1.8 acre parcel of land located at

         13           220 North Franklin Street, 226

         14           North Franklin Street and 230

         15           North Franklin Street each in the

         16           Village of Hempstead, Town of

         17           Hempstead, Nassau County, New

         18           York, (ii) the renovation and

         19           equipping of an existing

         20           approximately 16,500 square foot

         21           building, (iii) the construction

         22           and equipping of an approximately

         23           1,768 square foot addition to the

         24           existing building for a service

         25           reception area and approximately
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          2           624 square foot addition to the

          3           existing building for use as a car

          4           sales area (collectively, the

          5           "Facility"), all to be leased by

          6           the Agency to, and used by the

          7           Company in the operation of a

          8           Hyundai dealership offering sales

          9           of automobiles and the display,

         10           service, repair and storage of

         11           automobiles.

         12               The Agency proposes to

         13           provide financial assistance to

         14           the Company in connection with the

         15           Facility in the form of exemptions

         16           from mortgage recording taxes in

         17           connection with the financing or

         18           any subsequent refinancing of the

         19           Facility, exemptions from sales

         20           and use taxes and an abatement of

         21           real property taxes, consistent

         22           with the policies of the Agency.

         23               A representative of the

         24           Agency will at the above-stated

         25           time and place hear and accept
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          2           written comments from all persons

          3           with views in favor of or opposed

          4           to either the proposed financial

          5           assistance to the Company or the

          6           location or nature of the

          7           facility.  At the hearing, all

          8           persons will have the opportunity

          9           to review the application for

         10           financial assistance filed by the

         11           company with the Agency and an

         12           analysis of the costs and benefits

         13           of the proposed facility.

         14                         (Recess was taken.)

         15                  MR. PAROLA:  Sir?

         16                  MR. PETTUS:  Perry Pettus,

         17           157 East Marshall.

         18                  Against the PILOT Mercedes

         19           Benz.  I'm a trustee in the

         20           Village of Hempstead.

         21                  UNKNOWN SPEAKER:  What

         22           about Hyundai?

         23                  MR. PAROLA:  This is 927.

         24                  UNKNOWN SPEAKER:  Which is

         25           the first hearing?
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          2                  MR. PAROLA:  927 Realty.

          3                  UNKNOWN SPEAKER:  Which is

          4           Hyundai?

          5                  MR. PAROLA:  Correct.

          6                  MR. PETTUS:  I can speak on

          7           both.

          8                  MR. PAROLA:  Yes, you can.

          9                  MR. PETTUS:  I am here to

         10           speak on both PILOTs.  We don't

         11           need them.  We have enough in this

         12           village.  If anybody -- talking

         13           about Hyundai or Mercedes, they

         14           need to go up on their prices to

         15           the people that buy them, then do

         16           that.  The taxpayers should not

         17           have to eat this.  That's number

         18           one.

         19                  Number two -- well, I

         20           really want to say more about the

         21           Mercedes PILOT, but I can't talk

         22           about the Mercedes PILOT?

         23                  MR. PAROLA:  You can.  You

         24           can save yourself time.

         25                  MR. PETTUS:  They are
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          2           coming from Lakeview.  We don't

          3           need them.  I don't know what kind

          4           of deal they want to do, but we

          5           don't need this.  We can't afford

          6           to give another PILOT.  I mean, if

          7           we open this up for them, we got

          8           to open it up for every dealership

          9           in this village and we just can't

         10           afford to do that.

         11                  The taxpayers shouldn't

         12           have to eat that.  Why should the

         13           taxpayers pay for what they want

         14           to do and make money?  If they got

         15           a problem, charge it off to

         16           whoever they sell these cars to.

         17           That's the way I look at that.

         18           Thank you.

         19                  MR. PAROLA:  Thank you.

         20           Anyone else?

         21                  MR. RYAN:  I would like to

         22           be heard, too.  Don Ryan, 220

         23           Bedell Avenue, Hempstead.

         24                  I, too, am speaking against

         25           both PILOT possibilities.  As we
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          2           all know, times are extremely

          3           difficult.  No one is struggling

          4           any more than the residents of the

          5           Village of Hempstead.

          6                  In addition to the tax

          7           expenses, it's going to be a very

          8           difficult assignment for them.  I

          9           want to speak on their behalf in

         10           that regard.  For example, if

         11           there is a tax hike, and we're not

         12           going to see, even though this is

         13           a 10-year PILOT, years before we

         14           begin to see something, but during

         15           that period of time there are

         16           going to be people who are going

         17           to have foreclosures on their

         18           homes, going to be more for sale

         19           signs, going to be more people

         20           making difficult decisions on how

         21           to spend their dollars.  It's

         22           going to be uncomfortable

         23           decisions.  I don't think it's

         24           fair.

         25                  We have a disproportionate
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          2           amount of PILOTs in the Village of

          3           Hempstead.  There are no members

          4           of the Town IDA board who are

          5           Village of Hempstead residents.

          6           Consequently, we're getting taxed

          7           without real representation.  What

          8           I would urge is some sort of

          9           moratorium on any incorporated

         10           village within the Town of

         11           Hempstead who has 30 percent or

         12           more of their tax property off the

         13           tax rolls, so that we don't have

         14           to be burdened with any additional

         15           type of breaks.

         16                  With that possible, I think

         17           it makes it a little more

         18           comfortable when the economy

         19           changes and we can listen to

         20           issues at that time.  Right now

         21           it's not the time.

         22                  One of the things that

         23           concerns me is that the Village of

         24           Hempstead, elected officials, have

         25           no say in this matter.  I think
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          2           sometimes that you have a

          3           compelling argument, but you got

          4           to let us draw the same

          5           conclusion.  Let the decision be

          6           made by the mayor and the Board of

          7           Trustees in an open meeting,

          8           formally, by vote, to determine

          9           whether or not we can accept this

         10           type of a PILOT or not.

         11                  I would draw your attention

         12           to the fact that I'm speaking

         13           against both PILOTs.  If either or

         14           both companies were to make money

         15           or to profit by their experience

         16           while they are in the Village of

         17           Hempstead, those funds are not

         18           going to be returned to the

         19           taxpayers for the additional

         20           monies they had to pay to create

         21           that type of atmosphere.  I find

         22           that to be inherently unfair.

         23                  So I'm urging as we move

         24           forward that any PILOT has to be

         25           approved at the village level
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          2           before it can be posed by the

          3           town.  And we're into double

          4           digits now with the number of

          5           PILOTs that have been granted by

          6           the Town of Hempstead IDA.  It's a

          7           very difficult assignment.  I will

          8           stand on your back, our residents

          9           can ill afford that.  Thank you.

         10                  MR. PAROLA:  Thank you,

         11           Don.

         12                  Just for the record, so you

         13           know, both these PILOTs begin at a

         14           level of taxation that is

         15           currently being paid.  So for

         16           example, if the tax on the one is

         17           247,000 right now, this year, that

         18           will be the first tax for next

         19           year.  It will be frozen for three

         20           years.  Then it will go up each of

         21           the subsequent seven years to

         22           reach the 10 years at which point

         23           in the 11th year they go to full

         24           value.

         25                  My only argument to remind
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          2           you folks is that but for the

          3           incentives provided by the IDA,

          4           they would not be improving these

          5           particular projects.

          6                  Let me finish and then I

          7           will be happy to entertain any

          8           additional comments.  I want you

          9           to understand the panoply here.

         10                  So the improvement will be

         11           a permanent improvement.  There

         12           are jobs, sales tax that you share

         13           in, so there are economic

         14           benefits.  There's vitality in the

         15           community as a result of people

         16           coming into Hempstead.  The people

         17           that work there certainly shop and

         18           eat in the local retail

         19           establishments.  So there is a

         20           good economic -- and remember,

         21           we're not Babylon.  Babylon cuts

         22           the existing taxes in half for a

         23           PILOT.  We don't have the audacity

         24           as a board to do that.  All of the

         25           people that are on this board are
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          2           sensitive to the pain out there,

          3           and it's beyond words at this

          4           point what's happening in this

          5           country.  And certainly the

          6           village, as you've well

          7           articulated, both of you, is a

          8           microcosm of what's happening.

          9           But understand, we're not seeing a

         10           reduction in what you'd otherwise

         11           be getting.  You're seeing exactly

         12           what you had.  Yeah, it's frozen

         13           so you get a little piece, but it

         14           goes up every year.

         15                  Wait.  Don had the floor.

         16                  MR. RYAN:  Fred, you bring

         17           up a very important point that I

         18           wanted to comment on, and that is

         19           the reality of the jobs.

         20                  I would like to know

         21           exactly how many Village of

         22           Hempstead residents are going to

         23           profit by an employment experience

         24           because of this PILOT.  We don't

         25           know.  Maybe none.
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          2                  MR. PAROLA:  We'll follow

          3           up with the owners for both of

          4           them.

          5                  MR. RYAN:  You've taken

          6           liberty with many of the PILOTs

          7           that you do.  I can't find

          8           anything in the PILOT information

          9           that I get online that

         10           indicates -- for example, the last

         11           time I was here you talked about

         12           590-600 Fulton.  That suggests

         13           that you can have a rehabilitation

         14           of an existing apartment building.

         15           It says in one of the decisions

         16           made by a judge at the state level

         17           that the possibility of building

         18           an apartment building might be

         19           valuable if it creates jobs and

         20           stops any erosion of the quality

         21           of life.  But it doesn't say

         22           anything about rehabilitation.

         23           Yet you took it upon yourself to

         24           assume that that broader

         25           interpretation was available.
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          2                  I would suggest that with

          3           these two, one of the things that

          4           does irk me, and I am interested

          5           in your reply, let's say they make

          6           a profit.  Are they going to pay

          7           back the residents of the Village

          8           of Hempstead for whatever money

          9           that we had to pay to give them an

         10           opportunity to have a business

         11           that you would call necessary

         12           under a PILOT?  And I doubt the

         13           answer is going to be favorable.

         14                  All of what you've said

         15           draws the same conclusion, at the

         16           village level the mayor and

         17           trustees would like to be able to

         18           see that type of information and

         19           have an opportunity to draw a

         20           similar or different conclusion.

         21           We are out of the equation.  You

         22           impose it on the residents of the

         23           Village of Hempstead, you bypass

         24           the elected officials who are

         25           closest to the people and you do
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          2           it with a board that has no

          3           Village of Hempstead

          4           representation.  I find that

          5           uncomfortable and unfair.

          6                  MR. PAROLA:  The only

          7           answer I have, having been an

          8           elected official for many years,

          9           23 in fact, I can respect and

         10           understand your chagrin.

         11                  It's a public authority.

         12           It has the right to transcend

         13           local village, town and county and

         14           that's the law.

         15                  MR. RYAN:  There must be

         16           some fairness.

         17                  MR. PAROLA:  There's one of

         18           these in Seaford/Wantagh where I

         19           live and we don't have a

         20           representative from Seaford or

         21           Wantagh there, either.

         22                  UNKNOWN SPEAKER:  One.

         23                  MR. PAROLA:  I can't help

         24           that.

         25                  MR. PETTUS:  Everything
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          2           falls in Hempstead.

          3                  MR. PAROLA:  You have an

          4           attractive community for business.

          5                  MR. PETTUS:  Where are they

          6           now?  I mean, there's no local

          7           people from the village on the

          8           board.  I mean, they're not here

          9           to hear our pain or feel our pain.

         10           It's just too many PILOTs in this

         11           village.  We can't afford any

         12           more.  Everybody is losing their

         13           homes in our village.  There are

         14           signs all over the place.  It has

         15           to stop.

         16                  MR. PAROLA:  As I've told

         17           Don, and Don has been here for

         18           every one of these, as you have

         19           been here before, also, and I've

         20           seen many of you before, we

         21           respect your feelings.  I think

         22           the IDA's position is they see the

         23           bigger picture.  They've got a

         24           responsibility, economic

         25           development.  You can't have a
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          2           hundred people on a board or 50

          3           people on a board.  Even in local

          4           government.  You don't always have

          5           an elected official from the

          6           community that represents you in

          7           the assembly or the senate or the

          8           county legislature.  You are

          9           fortunate you do in my good friend

         10           the assemblywoman, but other than

         11           that, you don't always have in the

         12           concept of representation, and

         13           again, authority doesn't fall

         14           under this, but the concept of

         15           representation is you elect a

         16           person or you appoint a person in

         17           the hope that they see the bigger

         18           picture.  If we had a pure

         19           democracy, then we'd all, okay,

         20           vote, and everyone would vote

         21           tomorrow on their computers and

         22           maybe that will come some day.

         23           Right now we don't have a pure

         24           democracy.  We have a

         25           representative one.  Beyond that
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          2           perhaps aloofness, you've got an

          3           authority that is even more

          4           distant.

          5                  MR. PETTUS:  My thing is,

          6           all these car dealers, if this

          7           goes through, every one of them is

          8           going to want them.  The sad part

          9           about it, all the tax money goes

         10           to the county.  We don't get

         11           nothing.  Very little.  We should

         12           get about $7 million in sales tax.

         13           We're not getting all that.

         14                  MR. RYAN:  We got $149,000.

         15                  MR. PETTUS:  Right.  All

         16           that money goes to the county.

         17           The residents in this village got

         18           to eat this bill.  That's not the

         19           right thing to do.

         20                  MR. PAROLA:  Good point.

         21                  MS. BORUM:  Can I say

         22           something?

         23                  MR. PAROLA:  Certainly.

         24                  MS. BORUM:  My name is

         25           Barbara Borum.
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          2                  You made a statement that

          3           this is an attractive area.  Well,

          4           of course it's an attractive area

          5           because this is the only area that

          6           allows these people to come into

          7           their village and put businesses

          8           here and we the taxpayers have to

          9           pick up the price.  You can't go

         10           into Garden City and do it.  You

         11           can't go into East Meadow and do

         12           it.  So dump on Hempstead.

         13                  MR. PAROLA:  Actually, we

         14           have at least five --

         15                  MR. BORUM:  Not as much as

         16           Hempstead.

         17                  MR. PAROLA:  How many do

         18           you have in Garden City?  Five,

         19           six?

         20                  UNKNOWN SPEAKER:  Is it 30

         21           percent of the property off the

         22           tax roll?  Is it in your

         23           backyard --

         24                  MR. PAROLA:  Your problem

         25           in Hempstead is Hofstra.
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          2                  MS. BORUM:  No, it's not.

          3           It's the PILOTs that is our

          4           problem.

          5                  MR. PAROLA:  Excuse me.

          6           Fiscal standpoint, you think that

          7           the macro number of our small

          8           PILOTs in any way approaches your

          9           impact with Hofstra?

         10                  UNKNOWN SPEAKER:  I have --

         11                  MR. PAROLA:  It was a

         12           rhetorical question.

         13                  MR. BOTTOMS:  Mark Bottoms,

         14           58 Angevine Avenue, Hempstead, New

         15           York.

         16                  If you say that there's

         17           PILOTs like that at Hofstra and

         18           you're on the IDA board --

         19                  MR. PAROLA:  No, we don't.

         20                  MR. BOTTOMS:  So what are

         21           you saying?  What does Hofstra

         22           have to do with the rest of this?

         23                  MR. PAROLA:  Because

         24           Hofstra is included in

         25           non-taxable.
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          2                  MR. BOTTOMS:  Do they get

          3           PILOT agreements?

          4                  MR. PAROLA:  No.

          5                  MR. RYAN:  Hofstra has a

          6           PILOT agreement from you as of

          7           2008.

          8                  MR. PAROLA:  They're a

          9           not-for-profit.

         10                  MR. RYAN:  But they have a

         11           PILOT.

         12                  MR. PAROLA:  It's not a

         13           PILOT.  We did bonds for them.

         14           They don't get a PILOT.

         15                  MR. RYAN:  Fred, when I

         16           wrote to you and asked you for a

         17           list in 2008 of all of the PILOTs

         18           the Town of Hempstead IDA has

         19           offered in the Village of

         20           Hempstead, you gave me seven.

         21           There's been a few added since.

         22           However, one of the seven was

         23           Hofstra University.

         24                  MR. PAROLA:  I think by

         25           PILOTs -- they are not-for-profit
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          2           so they don't qualify for PILOTS.

          3                  MR. RYAN:  It's on your

          4           list.

          5                  MR. PAROLA:  Is there a

          6           PILOT with Hofstra?

          7                  MS. LONGO:  There is not.

          8                  MR. RYAN:  I am going to go

          9           to the car and get that list.

         10                  MR. PAROLA:  Believe me --

         11           you can get it.  They are probably

         12           on the list because they did

         13           receive bonds.

         14                  MR. RYAN:  It was on the

         15           list that you created at my

         16           request.

         17                  MR. PAROLA:  Of projects

         18           that had benefits.

         19                  MR. RYAN:  I asked you for

         20           the list of any projects in the

         21           Village of Hempstead that enjoyed

         22           a PILOT and Hofstra was on that

         23           list.

         24                  MR. PETTUS:  It was on that

         25           list because he showed me.
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          2                  MR. PAROLA:  They're

          3           not-for-profit.  They don't need a

          4           PILOT.  They get -- automatically

          5           they don't pay taxes, just like

          6           churches.  I probably put it on

          7           the list because they were a,

          8           quote, unquote, IDA project.  They

          9           don't need a PILOT.

         10                  MR. BOTTOMS:  Is this a

         11           formality that we are going

         12           through again?  Why would

         13           businesses come in and begin to

         14           develop, and they're fixing up

         15           Mercedes Benz dealership over

         16           there.  Why would I come in and

         17           spend so much money unless I knew

         18           I was getting a PILOT?  Are there

         19           some deals being made or something

         20           that we don't know about with IDA?

         21                  MR. PAROLA:  What do you

         22           mean, "deals?"  I don't

         23           understand.

         24                  MR. BOTTOMS:  As far as why

         25           would I spend $5 million on
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          2           renovating a building and then

          3           apply for a PILOT after the fact

          4           not knowing whether I'm going to

          5           get it.

          6                  MR. PAROLA:  Because

          7           they've already been what we call,

          8           quote, unquote, preliminarily

          9           induced which means that the board

         10           has basically said we find this to

         11           be an attractive economic

         12           opportunity and we are going to

         13           extend benefits.

         14                  MR. BOTTOMS:  For who?

         15                  MR. PAROLA:  For the

         16           dealership.

         17                  MR. BOTTOMS:  Or the

         18           community?

         19                  MR. PAROLA:  For the

         20           dealership.  They're coming to us.

         21                  MR. BOTTOMS:  They are

         22           taking down stop signs.  There is

         23           a school right in that area.  They

         24           lit it up so that wealthy people

         25           can just ride through without
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          2           being worried.

          3                  MR. PAROLA:  That's up to

          4           your local village.  That's up to

          5           them to control.  I have nothing

          6           to do with that.  You know that.

          7           That's nothing I can help you

          8           with.

          9                  Let this gentleman go.  He

         10           hasn't spoken yet.

         11                  MR. LUCAS:  My name is

         12           Reginal Lucas.  I'm the president

         13           of Hempstead Coordinating Council

         14           of Civic Associations in the

         15           Village of Hempstead.  I live at

         16           96 Broadfield Road.

         17                  I'm a senior citizen.  I

         18           don't get no increases in my

         19           income, but yet and still you want

         20           to put this tax burden on me and

         21           you say it's fair.  How do you

         22           look at that and say it's fair?

         23           Are you looking in my pocket?  Do

         24           you know how much I make?  Here it

         25           is, Mercedes Benz, multi billion
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          2           dollar business, leaves Lakeville

          3           Center and comes over to

          4           Hempstead.  Why?  Because we are

          5           going to pay their taxes.  Not

          6           only their taxes, there are

          7           several different taxes they want

          8           us to pay.  What are they going to

          9           pay?  Is the tax that they're

         10           saving going to pay for employees?

         11           Are the employees going to come

         12           from Hempstead?

         13                  You know, these kinds of

         14           questions we don't get no answers

         15           to, but yet and still they say

         16           they deserve a PILOT.  I don't

         17           understand that.

         18                  MR. PAROLA:  Ma'am.

         19           Identify yourself.

         20                  MS. BORUM:  My name is

         21           Barbara Borum, 59 Devon Road,

         22           Hempstead.

         23                  Just to piggyback on what

         24           he said.  As far as the area is

         25           concerned, I do feel that it's
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          2           going to be an isolated unit.

          3           They put up all fences to hide the

          4           community, the homes that is in

          5           there by putting fences up, trees

          6           is all up.  Just what are they --

          7           besides getting our tax dollars,

          8           why would they move from one place

          9           to come here?  Did the PILOT run

         10           out where they are?

         11                  MR. PAROLA:  They didn't

         12           have a PILOT.

         13                  MS. BORUM:  Then why should

         14           we give them a PILOT?  Why

         15           couldn't they stay there and get a

         16           PILOT?

         17                  MR. PAROLA:  They could

         18           have -- remember, you only get a

         19           PILOT if you're building or

         20           improving a property.  You can't

         21           have an existing building, and if

         22           you're not adding jobs.

         23                  MS. BORUM:  Village people

         24           going to be hired there?

         25                  MR. PAROLA:  I can't make

                  Fevola Reporting & Transcription Inc. (631)724-7576

                                                              30

          1                       Proceedings

          2           them hire village people.

          3                  MS. BORUM:  Okay.  Then

          4           how can you make a statement like

          5           that?

          6                  MR. PAROLA:  Which

          7           statement?

          8                  MS. BORUM:  That people are

          9           going to be hired.  Not our

         10           people, not the people within the

         11           village.

         12                  MR. PAROLA:  They are going

         13           to hire X number of people.

         14                  MR. LUCAS:  How many?

         15                  MR. PAROLA:  It's in --

         16                  UNKNOWN SPEAKER:  It's in

         17           the application which is supposed

         18           to be available right now for us.

         19           The application is supposed to be

         20           available for us.

         21                  MR. PAROLA:  Ask Edie how

         22           much we are hiring so I don't have

         23           to waste time and I could hear

         24           these folks.

         25                  UNKNOWN SPEAKER:  Waste
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          2           time with these folks?

          3                  MR. PAROLA:  Wait.  Wait.

          4           Hold it.  This gentleman is first.

          5           Please identify yourself.

          6               MR. MILEY:  Frederick Miley.

          7                  MR. PAROLA:  Go ahead, sir.

          8                  MR. MILEY:  My question is

          9           why you don't take it to the

         10           street when you're making these

         11           proposals?  Every time we meet we

         12           got to meet in one of these little

         13           small rooms.  The last time it was

         14           in Garden City, I think 1100,

         15           right?  You didn't have enough

         16           room for about 10 people to come

         17           in.  After we got in, it got

         18           crowded, they called the Garden

         19           City cops on us.

         20                  MR. PAROLA:  That was the

         21           county, not us.

         22                  MR. MILEY:  I want to know

         23           why.  If you took it to that

         24           meeting room out there, it would

         25           be much better.
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          2                  MR. PAROLA:  This is very

          3           intimate.  This is nicer than the

          4           courtroom.

          5                  MR. MILEY:  No, it's not.

          6                  UNKNOWN SPEAKER:  How many

          7           people went to that room and

          8           didn't know to come in here?

          9                  MR. PAROLA:  They should

         10           have read the press release.  It

         11           said conference room.  It was

         12           right here.  It's right here.

         13                  MR. MILEY:  Why don't you

         14           go to --

         15                  MR. PAROLA:  We came down

         16           and got you.  What, sir?

         17                  VOICE:  No.  No.  Someone

         18           came to find out where the meeting

         19           was.  You didn't come to get us.

         20                  MR. PAROLA:  Okay.

         21           Whatever.  Don't talk out of turn,

         22           please.

         23                  Okay.  This is 927, for the

         24           record.  Presently obviously there

         25           are no jobs, because they're not
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          2           there.  First year they are adding

          3           50 full time, 10 part time and in

          4           the second year they are adding

          5           two more and five -- two more full

          6           time and 15 part time.

          7                  MR. RYAN:  But how many of

          8           them are existing employees at

          9           present?

         10                  MR. PAROLA:  Don't know.

         11                  MR. RYAN:  The word

         12           "adding" might be misleading.

         13                  MR. PAROLA:  It may be, but

         14           I don't know what they have now.

         15           Wait.  Wait.  Stop.

         16                  MR. RYAN:  I was just

         17           commenting.

         18                  MR. PAROLA:  Go ahead, Don.

         19                  MR. RYAN:  It may be very

         20           well the same employees that are

         21           simply being transferred from one

         22           site to another and it has

         23           nothing to do with additional

         24           employees and it has nothing to do

         25           with Village of Hempstead
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          2           residents.  It's kind of a

          3           misleading number which seemingly

          4           is working to their advantage, but

          5           to no advantage of the residents

          6           of our community.

          7                  MR. PAROLA:  Yes, sir.

          8           Just identify yourself.

          9                  MR. OPPENHEIMER:  Dan

         10           Oppenheimer, 23 Bedell Avenue,

         11           Hempstead.

         12                  Regardless of whether these

         13           are new jobs or existing jobs, how

         14           do you enforce any clawbacks if

         15           they fail to meet their --

         16                  MR. PAROLA:  Every year

         17           they are required by the State of

         18           New York to file all of their

         19           records with respect to their

         20           activity, jobs.  These are sworn

         21           affidavits so they are subject to

         22           liability, criminal liability if

         23           they are falsified.  Economic

         24           activity, job fulfillment, et

         25           cetera, et cetera.  Insurance.
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          2           They have to fulfill all the

          3           leader requirements under the

          4           state law with respect to what

          5           they've committed.

          6                  We have reduced benefits

          7           for certain businesses through the

          8           history that have not complied

          9           with their commitment to us.

         10                  MR. OPPENHEIMER:  So each

         11           year you review every single PILOT

         12           that is existing to make sure --

         13                  MR. PAROLA:  Absolutely.

         14                  MR. OPPENHEIMER:  In this

         15           case, for example, if at the end

         16           of you're saying 2012, I assume,

         17           if they do not have 50 full time

         18           and 10 part-time employees, you

         19           would have some action regarding

         20           reducing the PILOT?

         21                  MR. PAROLA:  We could.

         22           Yes.

         23                  UNKNOWN SPEAKER:  You could

         24           or do you?

         25                  MR. PAROLA:  Let me give
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          2           you an example.  After 9/11 one of

          3           the PILOTs that we had was a

          4           company that -- not in Hempstead

          5           Village, that provided meals for

          6           the airlines.  Quite obviously

          7           with the disaster that occurred,

          8           their business went right

          9           underground.  So we called them in

         10           and said, look, you're not in

         11           compliance.  You have fewer jobs.

         12           Your economic activity is down.

         13           We have to cut back or eliminate

         14           your benefit.

         15                  They came to us and they

         16           made a very compelling argument.

         17           They said, look, we're dead.  9/11

         18           absolutely killed our business and

         19           you're just going to add insult to

         20           injury if you cut us out totally.

         21                  The board listened.

         22           Instead of eliminating all the

         23           benefits, we reduced them a bit to

         24           send a message.  Under the

         25           circumstance, quite obviously, it
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          2           wasn't the way to go.

          3                  MR. PETTUS:  One other

          4           question.

          5                  MR. PAROLA:  Yes, sir.

          6                  MR. PETTUS:  Since all the

          7           tax money is gone over to the

          8           county, why can't everyone in the

          9           county be taxed for this?  Why

         10           does it have to be the village

         11           residents?

         12                  MR. PAROLA:  This is the

         13           way it works.  This is our tax

         14           structure.

         15                  MS. BORUM:  Can I ask you a

         16           question?  Is this an

         17           after-the-fact meeting?  In other

         18           words, have the deals been sealed

         19           already and then you are calling

         20           everybody in to inform as if you

         21           are looking for our approval, but

         22           it has already been approved?

         23           Because that's what it sounds like

         24           you're saying.

         25                  MR. PAROLA:  They have been
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          2           given a preliminary inducement.

          3                  MS. BORUM:  We are second

          4           thought.  We're an afterthought.

          5                  MR. PAROLA:  It's been out

          6           there.  It was advertised in the

          7           beginning.

          8                  MS. BORUM:  But not a

          9           hearing on it.

         10                  MR. PAROLA:  Well, it was

         11           before the board.

         12                  VOICE:  All new lights put

         13           up, all trees put up.

         14                  MR. PAROLA:  It was

         15           advertised as such when they

         16           presented to us their proposal, I

         17           don't know when, number of months

         18           ago.

         19                  MS. BORUM:  Should it not

         20           be on the people, community of the

         21           incorporated village whether or

         22           not they would like certain

         23           things?

         24                  MR. PAROLA:  No.  Not the

         25           way the law works.
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          2                  MS. BORUM:  So it's solely

          3           onto you and --

          4                  MR. PAROLA:  Not me.  I'm

          5           answering.

          6                  MS. BORUM:  Solely on the

          7           IDA to determine what taxes should

          8           be put upon us and what taxes

          9           should not, not the people that

         10           have to pay the taxes.  A lot of

         11           the people that is making these

         12           decisions probably don't even live

         13           in Hempstead.

         14                  MR. PAROLA:  Well, they

         15           live in the Town of Hempstead.

         16                  MS. BORUM:  Not in the

         17           incorporated village who is

         18           picking up the tab.

         19                  MR. PAROLA:  Mr. Holley

         20           hasn't spoken and then we'll go

         21           back to you, sir.

         22                  MR. RYAN:  Was Dan

         23           finished?

         24                  MR. PAROLA:  I'm sorry,

         25           sir.
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          2                  MR. OPPENHEIMER:  One

          3           piggyback on that.  On the other

          4           side of it, if they are making

          5           tremendous profits, I think Don

          6           had alluded to this, also, what

          7           are the provisions for eliminating

          8           PILOTs early assuming that -- I

          9           know there was a recent real

         10           estate deal, 711 Stewart Avenue,

         11           within last year and it was

         12           announced that the original

         13           developer who received the PILOT

         14           had a profit in excess of $20

         15           million over the course of about

         16           six years from the time he

         17           purchased the building, received

         18           the PILOT, renovated the building

         19           and just recently sold it to

         20           another party.

         21                  MR. PAROLA:  Right.

         22                  MR. OPPENHEIMER:  So a $20

         23           million profit, a 10-year PILOT is

         24           still in effect for this same

         25           property is my understanding.  So
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          2           why would a property that is

          3           generating that type of profit,

          4           pure profit, be eligible for any

          5           type of PILOT once that deal has

          6           been concluded?

          7                  MR. PAROLA:  I guess the

          8           argument --

          9                  MR. OPPENHEIMER:  Should

         10           not he return all of the PILOT

         11           money at that point?

         12                  MR. PAROLA:  I think the

         13           argument, counter-argument is that

         14           it's working.

         15                  MR. OPPENHEIMER:  For him.

         16                  MS. BORUM:  In whose favor?

         17                  MR. PAROLA:  For you.

         18           Economic development.  Jobs.  You

         19           think he puts that $20 million

         20           under his bed?  He is going to do

         21           another project.

         22                  MR. RYAN:  I believe he got

         23           a second PILOT.

         24                  MR. PAROLA:  Maybe another

         25           location.  He did.  In Garden
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          2           City.

          3                  Are you done, sir?

          4                  MR. OPPENHEIMER:  I'm done.

          5                  MR. PAROLA:  Okay.  Henry

          6           Holley.

          7                  MR. HOLLEY:  I'm sorry I'm

          8           late.  I was at the pavilion.  I

          9           assumed it would be packed here

         10           and that's why I went there first

         11           and then I had to find my way

         12           here.

         13                  I'm definitely concerned,

         14           Fred.  I sat on the IDA board some

         15           years ago.  Right now we have

         16           about 35, 40 percent of our

         17           property off the tax roll.  We

         18           have sewers backing up in people's

         19           homes because we don't have money

         20           to repair them.  Every time I turn

         21           around, there is another PILOT,

         22           another PILOT, another PILOT.

         23           What we do is taking property that

         24           would normally pay tax and because

         25           someone would come in --
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          2                  MR. PAROLA:  Let me stop

          3           you.  It's a misnomer, it's a

          4           misnomer to say that they are off

          5           the tax rolls.  They are paying

          6           taxes.

          7                  MR. HOLLEY:  They are not

          8           paying the full amount.  I'm a

          9           real estate agent.  I can't sell a

         10           house in Hempstead.  I pay $12,000

         11           myself living in a house by

         12           myself.  Okay?  I bought the house

         13           in 1963, I was paying $3,000.  I'm

         14           paying 12 now.  People cannot

         15           afford any more property reducing

         16           their tax.

         17                  The reason we get TSS

         18           and -- is because we got 45B.

         19           They are not paying taxes.  If you

         20           got a piece of property, you know

         21           it as well as I know it, if the

         22           property is empty, you pay on the

         23           land.  When you put a building on

         24           it, you pay on the building and

         25           revenue that generates on it.
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          2                  MR. PAROLA:  Yes.

          3                  MR. HOLLEY:  I see that.

          4           That is what happened to ANS,

          5           that's what happened to TSS.  When

          6           you have a building that somebody

          7           buys and says I am going to

          8           request a PILOT and don't pay the

          9           full amount of taxes, you are

         10           hurting the citizens.

         11                  Look at this building.  It

         12           was here a long time.  I've been

         13           here since 1955.  The town hall is

         14           off the tax rolls.  Everybody use

         15           the town hall.  The district court

         16           we thought --

         17                  MR. PAROLA:  But Henry, you

         18           are going to issues that I have

         19           nothing to do with.

         20                  MR. HOLLEY:  Because I am

         21           still paying tax for it.

         22                  MR. PAROLA:  I understand.

         23           Let me ask you this question.  I

         24           am going to say it again.  But for

         25           the IDA, many of the projects that
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          2           have improved both the quality of

          3           life for folks in the community,

          4           like some of the residentials

          5           we've done, as well as built

          6           buildings that otherwise would be

          7           lying fallow.  You would have more

          8           land undeveloped, land only tax,

          9           if there wasn't an IDA.  Then but

         10           for our intervention which has

         11           created economic activity in the

         12           sense of development, putting

         13           buildings, productivity on that

         14           property that otherwise would be

         15           fallow.

         16                  MR. HOLLEY:  I agree with

         17           you.

         18                  MR. PETTUS:  I agree with

         19           you, but not these two.

         20                  MR. PAROLA:  I have to take

         21           the broad picture.  It's a mistake

         22           to say that you're not generating

         23           necessarily more property tax

         24           because of the IDA than without us

         25           because we do increase -- the
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          2           PILOT in the fourth year, if they

          3           put a building on, for example, we

          4           pop it.  It's not a three percent

          5           increase.  I'll pop it 15, 20

          6           percent that fourth year to

          7           reflect the fact that there is a

          8           building.

          9                  Look, you're arguments are

         10           all valid.  If I were maybe on the

         11           other side of the street I would

         12           be taking the same argument,

         13           perhaps.  You've articulated it

         14           very well.  I am trying to put

         15           things in balance.

         16                  There is a strong argument

         17           that our role is a positive one in

         18           the short term, even, because they

         19           are paying more taxes because

         20           they're developing.  They wouldn't

         21           do it but for the IDA.

         22                  UNKNOWN SPEAKER:  That

         23           remains to be seen.

         24                  MR. PAROLA:  Excuse me.

         25           Excuse me.
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          2                  In the 11th year they are

          3           going to be fully taxed.

          4                  MR. HOLLEY:  The PILOT on

          5           Terrace Avenue, 30-year PILOT?

          6                  MR. RYAN:  Nassau County.

          7                  MR. HOLLEY:  It's on my

          8           taxes.

          9                  MR. PAROLA:  I'm a target.

         10           Hit the right target.  I'll go

         11           with you and fight the county.

         12                  UNKNOWN SPEAKER:  You are

         13           supposed to take that into account

         14           --

         15                  MR. PAROLA:  Excuse me.

         16                  MR. HOLLEY:  All I'm saying

         17           is we seem to be the dumping

         18           grounds of the PILOTs, Village of

         19           Hempstead.  That's what I'm

         20           saying.  Hempstead is one of the

         21           oldest villages on Long Island.

         22           Our sewer system is backing up in

         23           people's homes.  Ask Councilwoman

         24           Goosby.  She lives right in back

         25           to me.  This is what happens here.
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          2           They are not generating enough tax

          3           dollars.  Everybody comes to use

          4           the district court, the sewers,

          5           roads and infrastructure.  Who is

          6           suffering?  The people that own

          7           property here in Hempstead.

          8                  MR. PAROLA:  I hear you.

          9                  MR. PETTUS:  One more thing

         10           and I have no more to say.

         11                  MR. PAROLA:  Don't say

         12           that.  You may.

         13                  MR. PETTUS:  As a trustee

         14           in the village, I see all these

         15           new trees up, all the lighting,

         16           stop signs pulled.  I'm a trustee.

         17           I am supposed to know what is

         18           going on.  How is all of this

         19           stuff taking place and I don't

         20           know what is going on, and the

         21           taxpayers are paying for those

         22           lights and trees being put up.

         23           Where is this all coming from?

         24           How are you going to pull the stop

         25           sign without going to the Traffic
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          2           Board?  Who is doing all this

          3           stuff?  Do you know who?

          4                  MR. RYAN:  I don't know if

          5           there was a dialogue between the

          6           other trustees and the mayor

          7           regarding this particular project.

          8                  MR. PAROLA:  We've sent all

          9           of these folks to the mayor.  They

         10           met with the mayor's

         11           representatives.  I can tell you

         12           that.

         13                  MR. RYAN:  We have not been

         14           part of that.

         15                  MR. LUCAS:  Can I be on

         16           your mailing list when you send

         17           out this type of information?

         18                  MR. PAROLA:  We don't do

         19           general mailings.  We announce the

         20           PILOT.

         21                  MR. LUCAS:  I would like to

         22           know what is going on.  If all

         23           what you are saying is true, we're

         24           not getting the information.  We

         25           don't want to be saying it's the
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          2           mayor's fault or anybody's fault.

          3                  MR. PAROLA:  I'm not

          4           blaming anyone.

          5                  MR. LUCAS:  You are saying

          6           the first 10 years, but usually

          7           after the 10 years is up, another

          8           10 years is attached on.  It's

          9           ongoing.

         10                  MR. PAROLA:  No.  No.  No.

         11           No, it isn't.

         12                  MR. BOTTOMS:  They leave --

         13                  MR. PAROLA:  Wait.  Let me

         14           answer the gentleman.

         15                  They are not eligible for

         16           an additional 10 years.  Their

         17           benefit is for them to get going,

         18           build up their business so they

         19           can handle the full valuation that

         20           they will then be paying.  You

         21           don't get another 10.  We don't

         22           play that game.

         23                  MR. BOTTOMS:  I'm next.

         24                  MR. PAROLA:  Let me get

         25           someone who hasn't gone.
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          2                  MR. BOTTOMS:  You said I

          3           was after Mr. Holley.

          4                  MR. PAROLA:  All right,

          5           sir.

          6                  MR. BOTTOMS:  You said

          7           before the initial hearing our

          8           local entities are to be made

          9           aware before any hearing occurs in

         10           the Village of Hempstead.

         11                  MR. PAROLA:  Say that

         12           again.  I didn't understand that.

         13                  MR. BOTTOMS:  Before the

         14           initial hearing, when the initial

         15           application goes in --

         16                  MR. PAROLA:  Before they

         17           appear before the board?

         18                  MR. BOTTOMS:  Before they

         19           appear before the board, is the

         20           school board to be made aware of

         21           what's going on?  And if they

         22           didn't receive notice, legally,

         23           and the village doesn't receive

         24           notice legally, does that nullify

         25           procedures?  The first question.
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          2                  MR. PAROLA:  It could.  But

          3           we do send out certified return

          4           receipt.

          5                  MR. BOTTOMS:  Well, Mr.

          6           Geras reports he didn't receive

          7           anything.  He is on the school

          8           board.

          9                  MR. PAROLA:  I don't know

         10           who you are, but it goes to the

         11           superintendent.

         12                  MR. GERAS:  Bob Geras,

         13           assistant superintendent of

         14           business for Hempstead Schools.

         15                  I am aware of this and the

         16           superintendent asked me to attend.

         17           I can't say conclusively that she

         18           did not receive an earlier notice.

         19           Let's clarify that.

         20                  MR. BOTTOMS:  I'm sorry.

         21           Second question.  What is the

         22           payroll schedule for this PILOT

         23           and how much does the village

         24           receive after the county gets

         25           their taxes?  What is the payroll
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          2           for both PILOTs?

          3                  MR. PAROLA:  The way the

          4           PILOT works is, in your case you

          5           have three taxing jurisdictions.

          6           You have the village, town -- I'm

          7           sorry.  Four.  The village, the

          8           town, the county and the school.

          9           Each year the PILOT is recomputed

         10           based upon what the normal tax

         11           would be if there were no PILOT.

         12           So, if the school is 60 percent in

         13           year 2012/2013 and then it goes to

         14           61 percent in 2013/2014, then the

         15           village would go down at a

         16           proportional level, so it gets

         17           readjusted each year as the total

         18           amount -- from the total amount

         19           that is otherwise taxed.

         20                  MR. BOTTOMS:  So there's no

         21           numbers right now, is that what

         22           you're saying?

         23                  MR. PAROLA:  We have a hard

         24           number in terms of the total

         25           amount they pay, but we don't have
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          2           a breakdown because it will change

          3           each year based upon what I

          4           indicated proportionately.

          5                  MR. BOTTOMS:  Tell me what

          6           the hard number is.  They gave an

          7           example of 247,000.

          8                  MR. PAROLA:  We can make a

          9           copy of that before you leave and

         10           I will give it to you.

         11                  MR. LUCAS:  Does the two

         12           percent cap effect that?

         13                  MR. PAROLA:  No.  No.

         14           Whose two percent cap?

         15                  MR. LUCAS:  State.

         16                  MR. PAROLA:  No.

         17                  MR. LUCAS:  It has no

         18           effect on that?

         19                  MR. PAROLA:  No.  Authority

         20           transcends that.

         21                  Yes, sir?

         22                  MR. OPPENHEIMER:  Question

         23           regarding you said you can't roll

         24           over a PILOT.  If it becomes a new

         25           owner, if they change ownership,
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          2           are they now eligible for a new

          3           round of PILOT?

          4                  MR. PAROLA:  They could be.

          5           In some cases we have.  In a case

          6           like this, we wouldn't do it.  In

          7           a -- we have done it.

          8                  MR. OPPENHEIMER:  Apartment

          9           building, things like that?

         10                  MR. PAROLA:  We have done

         11           it where there would be further

         12           improvements.  The normal policy

         13           of our board -- again, it's up to

         14           the board for policy, but the

         15           normal policy for our board is

         16           that if there is a change in

         17           ownership and a commitment of new

         18           monies and improvements, then the

         19           board would perhaps consider a

         20           longer PILOT, five years,

         21           sometimes, sometimes longer, but

         22           it has to be justified based upon

         23           a commitment financially.

         24                  MR. OPPENHEIMER:  As I

         25           recall, something similar to that
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          2           was with 590-600 Fulton.

          3                  MR. PAROLA:  I think so.  I

          4           believe so.  Yes.

          5                  This young lady hasn't

          6           spoken.  Identify yourself,

          7           please.

          8                  MS. GARRY:  Katherine

          9           Garry, 109 Broadway, Rockville

         10           Centre.  Resident of the Town of

         11           Hempstead.

         12                  I have several issues.

         13           First of all, in terms of notice,

         14           are you saying that the mayor and

         15           the school district have been

         16           given notice prior to the

         17           inducement discussion?

         18                  MR. PAROLA:  No.  No.

         19                  MS. GARRY:  They're not

         20           given notice.

         21                  MR. PAROLA:  No.  But it's

         22           on our agenda which is online for

         23           everyone to see before the

         24           meeting.  Anyone that is going to

         25           come to us -- the reason we don't
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          2           send formal notices is because

          3           someone is coming to us.  Many

          4           times it's an inquiry and we don't

          5           even do the PILOT.  We don't even

          6           entertain it.  We reject it when

          7           they make a presentation.

          8                  MS. GARRY:  When you get an

          9           application, do you notify the

         10           taxing agency?

         11                  MR. PAROLA:  Sometimes we

         12           get -- I would estimate that for

         13           every application -- if we receive

         14           50 applications, I bet less than

         15           half of them come to fruition, so

         16           we wouldn't.

         17                  MS. GARRY:  That would be

         18           too hard for you.

         19                  MR. PAROLA:  It would be a

         20           waste of time, is what it would

         21           be.  I don't like to waste my

         22           time.

         23                  MS. GARRY:  If you have an

         24           application in a particular

         25           community, I would think that you
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          2           would have the courtesy to notify

          3           the taxing agencies within that

          4           particular community.  You

          5           obviously don't do that.

          6                  So the first notice that

          7           was sent out was dated July 26th

          8           for a public hearing after an

          9           inducement has already been made.

         10                  MR. PAROLA:  Preliminary

         11           inducement.

         12                  MS. GARRY:  A preliminary

         13           inducement has already been made.

         14           The village has not been notified.

         15           The school district has not been

         16           notified and only on July 26th for

         17           an August 11th public hearing the

         18           mayor finally gets a notice and

         19           the school district.  They receive

         20           it after the 26th, perhaps on the

         21           27th or 28th.

         22                  MR. PAROLA:  My only

         23           comment to that would be there is

         24           the jure and there's reality.  We

         25           require any applicants in the
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          2           village to go to the

          3           administration and present to them

          4           their plan.  The jure, legal

          5           things that you have to do, are

          6           oftentimes bogus.  What is

          7           effective is you talking to me one

          8           on one and being able to express

          9           yourself and --

         10                  MS. GARRY:  Excuse me.

         11                  MR. PAROLA:  Please, let me

         12           answer your point.

         13                  MS. GARRY:  You interrupted

         14           me.

         15                  MR. PAROLA:  That's

         16           correct.  I have the right to do

         17           that to answer your question, with

         18           all due respect.

         19                  MS. GARRY:  Oh, really.

         20                  MR. PAROLA:  Yes.

         21                  UNKNOWN SPEAKER:  You are

         22           very rude, sir.

         23                  MR. PAROLA:  I'm sorry to

         24           hear that.

         25                  UNKNOWN SPEAKER:  Very
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          2           rude.

          3                  MR. PAROLA:  We all have

          4           our opinion.

          5                  UNKNOWN SPEAKER:  You need

          6           to have respect.

          7                  MR. PAROLA:  Ma'am, I have

          8           a great deal of respect and I'm

          9           delighted that you're here.  I'm

         10           trying to answer her questions.

         11                  UNKNOWN SPEAKER:  You're in

         12           our town, our community, have

         13           respect.  Have respect.

         14                  MR. PAROLA:  I am trying to

         15           answer questions.  It works two

         16           ways.

         17                  You may continue, Ms.

         18           Garry.

         19                  MS. GARRY:  You answered my

         20           question.  You said that you do

         21           not notify the municipality.

         22                  MR. PAROLA:  We require

         23           them to go and there is input with

         24           the administration and it is on

         25           our website, so there is plenty of
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          2           opportunity to see what we've got.

          3                  MS. GARRY:  Whether it's on

          4           the website or not, that's not the

          5           issue.  I am asking you, do you

          6           directly notify the entity.

          7                  MR. PAROLA:  You've gotten

          8           the answer.  Go ahead.

          9                  MS. GARRY:  Because

         10           otherwise, people have to go in

         11           every day to look, to see what is

         12           on your website which is usually

         13           what people don't do.  Perhaps the

         14           village should do it, but

         15           obviously it's not and if it does,

         16           it doesn't tell the people.

         17               However, it's July 27th, 28th

         18           by the time the mayor gets this

         19           notification.  It says in the

         20           notification that at the hearing

         21           you can review the application and

         22           that you can review the analysis

         23           of the costs and benefits of the

         24           proposed facility.  Now, I haven't

         25           seen here at the hearing, the
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          2           application, has not been given

          3           out to anyone and the cost and

          4           benefit analysis has not been

          5           given out to anyone.

          6                  Even if they had been given

          7           out, they are very technical and

          8           in order to make a comment on it

          9           you would certainly need at least

         10           a week, maybe two weeks, to be

         11           able to assess the cost benefit

         12           analysis to see if it's correct,

         13           to look at the application to see

         14           exactly what is being applied for

         15           and so you would need like two

         16           weeks to have these things in your

         17           hand in order to make intelligent

         18           analysis or a comment for you to

         19           consider.

         20                  This has not happened in

         21           this case.  No one has the cost

         22           analysis, no one has the

         23           application and even more

         24           important, several questions have

         25           come up here about the schedule of
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          2           payments and you have refused to

          3           give the information on the

          4           schedule of payments.

          5                  MR. PAROLA:  What schedule

          6           of payments?

          7                  MS. GARRY:  The schedule of

          8           payments under the PILOT.  You

          9           have indicated, first of all, that

         10           currently it's at the current tax

         11           rate which is very low.  I say

         12           which is very low.  You didn't say

         13           that.  The current tax rate for a

         14           property that is not developed is

         15           very low.  So if the first three

         16           years are at that rate, this

         17           community is losing a whole lot of

         18           money, and that doesn't also take

         19           into account the year that it

         20           takes them to build the thing

         21           where they're not paying those

         22           high taxes, either.  So you have

         23           like four years where they're

         24           paying practically nothing on one

         25           of these properties.
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          2                  The other property, the

          3           Hyundai, I believe there already

          4           is a building there and they are

          5           renovating and expanding.

          6           However, since they are expanding,

          7           to have the current rate for three

          8           years plus the one year where

          9           they're doing this, is very low

         10           compared to what it's going to be

         11           once the whole thing is expanded

         12           and rehabilitated.  So for the

         13           first four years you are paying --

         14           the people of Hempstead are losing

         15           a tremendous amount of money in

         16           taxes.

         17                  Then when you add on your

         18           increments which you have not

         19           revealed to us because you don't

         20           have the schedule of payments to

         21           show us, and even if you had them

         22           here it would be very difficult

         23           for anyone to do a quick analysis

         24           to see how much is actually being

         25           lost, because that document should
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          2           be given at least two weeks before

          3           the public hearing.

          4                  So these are just

          5           procedural problems that I have

          6           with what's going on here.

          7               Into your explanation that

          8           the PILOTs are not the biggest

          9           problem in Hempstead in terms of

         10           taxes or properties off the tax

         11           rolls because Hofstra, you

         12           consider to be the major problem.

         13           I have the facts.  I have all the

         14           assessed valuations of all the

         15           Hofstra properties and all the

         16           PILOT properties and I presented

         17           this to you at least a year ago so

         18           you should have the information.

         19                  MR. PAROLA:  Just for the

         20           record, what is the Hofstra

         21           percentage?

         22                  MS. GARRY:  Hofstra is $7

         23           million of Hofstra buildings are

         24           off the tax rolls.  For the

         25           PILOTs, 7 million additional
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          2           dollars of assessed valuation are

          3           off the tax rolls.

          4                  MR. PAROLA:  What does that

          5           include?  I'm curious.  What does

          6           that include at Hofstra, the main

          7           buildings, the high risers?

          8                  MS. GARRY:  Not all of

          9           Hofstra is in Hempstead.

         10                  MR. PAROLA:  I understand

         11           that.  What is?

         12                  MS. GARRY:  I mean, do you

         13           really need to have a list of

         14           them?

         15                  MR. PAROLA:  Just a few,

         16           for the record.

         17                  MS. GARRY:  I gave you this

         18           a year ago.  Memorial and Lowe

         19           Halls, Saltzman, Holly, Weed,

         20           Adams, main campus library,

         21           auxiliary library building which

         22           actually -- I don't even know if

         23           they still own that.  The south --

         24                  MR. PAROLA:  I'm sorry.

         25                  (Pause.)
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          2                  MS. GARRY:  It's a public

          3           hearing.  Documents should be

          4           given out free.  They are supposed

          5           to be given out ahead of time.

          6                  That's the list of the

          7           Hofstra properties.  I have all

          8           the assessed valuations and I have

          9           all the assessed valuations of all

         10           the PILOTs.

         11                  MR. PAROLA:  Would you like

         12           to submit that as evidence?  I

         13           would love you to, if you'd like

         14           to.

         15                  MS. GARRY:  I submitted it

         16           to you and you didn't read it the

         17           first time.

         18                  MR. PAROLA:  I did read it.

         19           I wanted you to articulate it.

         20                  MS. GARRY:  Hofstra is not

         21           the major problem.  I will charge

         22           you 25 cents a copy.

         23                  MR. PAROLA:  Then keep it.

         24           Who else would like to be heard?

         25                  MS. GARRY:  I am still
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          2           speaking, sir.

          3                  MR. PAROLA:  I'm sorry.  I

          4           thought you were done.

          5                  MS. GARRY:  I have just

          6           started.

          7                  MR. PAROLA:  Let me get my

          8           coffee.

          9                  UNKNOWN SPEAKER:  You are

         10           going to need it.  I can't wait to

         11           hear this on my show.  You people

         12           need a lesson in respect.  We as

         13           people of Hempstead can be

         14           disrespected.  I guarantee you,

         15           they would not go into a

         16           conference in Garden City or East

         17           Meadow or Lynbrook with such

         18           disrespect for the residents of

         19           that community.  We are tired of

         20           outsiders disrespecting our

         21           community.  You don't live here,

         22           but you work here.  Stop

         23           disrespecting our people.  That's

         24           right.

         25                  MR. PAROLA:  You have a
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          2           very interesting definition of

          3           respect, but that's another

          4           argument.

          5                  Yes, ma'am.  You were

          6           speaking.

          7                  MS. GARRY:  Right.  So

          8           therefore, Hofstra is not the

          9           major problem.  Hofstra, just like

         10           every other nonprofit

         11           organization, by federal law and

         12           state law are off the tax rolls.

         13           It's not an option.

         14                  MR. PAROLA:  Excuse me.  I

         15           am opening up the public hearing

         16           for 9:45.  I have to do this

         17           legally.

         18                  It's 9:59, but I would

         19           observe that we've already been

         20           discussing the second PILOT that

         21           is before us today and, in fact,

         22           it overlaps and has the same

         23           aspects as that of 927 Realty, LLC

         24           that we are currently discussing.

         25           I open up the public hearing with
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          2           respect to 110 Graham Realty, LLC

          3           and I will not read the notice,

          4           but submit this to you, for part

          5           of the record.

          6                  (Notice is hereby given

          7           that a public hearing pursuant to

          8           Title 1 of Article 18-A of the New

          9           York State General Municipal Law

         10           will be held by the Town of

         11           Hempstead Industrial Development

         12           Agency (the "Agency") on the 11th

         13           day of August, 2011, at 9:45 a.m.,

         14           local time, at 350 Front Street,

         15           Second Floor, IDA Conference Room,

         16           Hempstead, New York in connection

         17           with the following matters:

         18               110 Graham Realty, LLC, a

         19           duly organized and validly

         20           existing New York limited

         21           liability company, on behalf of

         22           itself and/or the principals of

         23           110 Graham Realty, LLC and/or an

         24           entity formed or to be formed on

         25           behalf of the foregoing

                  Fevola Reporting & Transcription Inc. (631)724-7576

                                                              71

          1                       Proceedings

          2           (collectively, the "Sublessee")

          3           has applied to the Town of

          4           Hempstead Industrial Development

          5           Agency (the "Agency") for its

          6           assistance in the acquisition of

          7           an approximately 3.8 acre parcel

          8           of land located at 110 West Graham

          9           Avenue, Village of Hempstead, Town

         10           of Hempstead, New York (and

         11           further identified as Section 36

         12           Block 486 Lots 40 and 41) (the

         13           "Land"), and the construction,

         14           renovation and equipping thereon

         15           of an existing approximately

         16           83,400 square foot building,

         17           together with an approximately

         18           12,445 square foot addition

         19           totaling an approximately 98,755

         20           square foot facility which will

         21           include a two-story building with

         22           indoor parking, and the

         23           installation of certain equipment

         24           including, but not limited to,

         25           lifts, air compressors, prep
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          2           equipment, office furniture and

          3           car wash equipment (collectively,

          4           the "Improvements" and

          5           "Equipment"; and, together with

          6           the Land, the "Facility"), all to

          7           be leased by the Agency to 110

          8           West Graham Avenue, LLC, a duly

          9           organized and validly existing New

         10           York limited liability company on

         11           behalf of itself and/or the

         12           principals of 110 West Graham

         13           Avenue, LLC and/or an entity

         14           formed or to be formed on behalf

         15           of the foregoing (the "Company"),

         16           for further sublease by the

         17           Company to, and used by, the

         18           Sublessee for use in the operation

         19           of a Mercedes Benz, USA dealership

         20           offering sales of new and used

         21           automobiles and service of

         22           automobiles to its customers.  The

         23           Facility will be initially owned,

         24           operated and/or managed by the

         25           Company.
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          2                  The Agency will acquire a

          3           fee interest in the Facility and

          4           will construct, renovate and equip

          5           the Facility and will lease the

          6           Facility to the Company.  The

          7           Company will sublease the Facility

          8           to the Sublessee.  At the end of

          9           the lease term, the Company will

         10           purchase the Facility from the

         11           Agency.  The Agency contemplates

         12           that it will provide financial

         13           assistance to the Company in the

         14           form of exemptions from sales and

         15           use taxes, a mortgage recording

         16           exemption, if a mortgage is

         17           required in connection with the

         18           financing or any subsequent

         19           refinancing of the Facility, and

         20           abatement of real property taxes,

         21           all consistent with the policies

         22           of the Agency.

         23                  A representative of the

         24           Agency will, at the above-stated

         25           time and place, hear and accept
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          2           written comments from all persons

          3           with views in favor of or opposed

          4           to either the proposed financial

          5           assistance to the Company and the

          6           Sublessee or the location or

          7           nature of the Facility.  At the

          8           hearing, all persons will have the

          9           opportunity to review the

         10           application for financial

         11           assistance filed by the Company

         12           with the Agency and an analysis of

         13           the costs and benefits of the

         14           proposed Facility.)

         15                  MR. PAROLA:  Please

         16           proceed.

         17                  MS. GARRY:  We already

         18           established that the schedule of

         19           payments has not been given to us

         20           and that from what you say, that

         21           it's at the current tax rate for

         22           several years and that that

         23           current tax rate is very low.  So

         24           when you start with something that

         25           is very low to start with, the gap
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          2           increases as each year passes,

          3           even though there's an increase in

          4           your schedule of payment according

          5           to what you said.  Usually the tax

          6           rate increases a lot more than

          7           your schedule.  We are losing, the

          8           community is losing a great deal

          9           of money.

         10                  We are now in 2010.  Under

         11           PILOTs there was a loss of $7

         12           million in assessed valuation.

         13           That did not include the PILOT at

         14           303 Main Street which is a 20-year

         15           PILOT.  It did not include the

         16           Bedell Terrace PILOT which someone

         17           said is a 30 year.  It's at least

         18           20.  I'm not sure if it's 30.

         19                  MR. RYAN:  Thirty.

         20                  MS. GARRY:  It does not

         21           include the Toyota one.  It does

         22           not include the one that you

         23           recently did on Attorney Street.

         24           So now the loss of assessed

         25           valuation for PILOTs is coming
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          2           more into the $8 million assessed

          3           valuation, maybe even more when

          4           you add this Mercedes Benz thing

          5           and when you add the Hyundai.  So

          6           it tops Hofstra.  It is far more

          7           than Hofstra.

          8                  These PILOTs are optional

          9           things.  The Hofstra thing, the

         10           Hofstra thing is not an optional

         11           thing.  These PILOTs are optional.

         12           That is the major difference here,

         13           the fact that it's more than

         14           Hofstra and secondly, that it's an

         15           optional thing.

         16               I believe that what happens

         17           here, I know it's true, is that

         18           the Hempstead residents are

         19           subsidizing these major

         20           corporations.  These major

         21           corporations, if they want to do

         22           business, they ought to pay the

         23           full taxes just like everybody

         24           else that lives in Hempstead.  The

         25           homeowners don't get a break, the
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          2           current businesses don't get these

          3           PILOTs.  These are new

          4           constructions, except for the ones

          5           that are adding on and renovating

          6           and then they get a tax decrease

          7           when they renovate.  This to me is

          8           exploitation of the Hempstead

          9           residents.

         10               As far as if we left this

         11           land undeveloped, you have to

         12           compare what you will get even

         13           though it's low under the PILOT,

         14           you have to compare it if we

         15           didn't do the PILOT, then we would

         16           get very less.

         17                  Well, that remains to be

         18           seen.  Hempstead is a very

         19           important community.  It is in a

         20           very high kind of rating.  It's

         21           valuable property.  Hempstead is a

         22           central area.  It's a very

         23           valuable property.  These

         24           businesses are trying to get into

         25           Hempstead and get tax breaks
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          2           because they keep telling people

          3           of Hempstead, oh, we won't come

          4           here unless you give us a tax

          5           break.  Personally, I don't

          6           believe that.  I believe

          7           businesses will come to Hempstead.

          8           An example is the TD Bank that

          9           went over there by Staples.  There

         10           was no PILOT on that.  It's a

         11           brand new building.  There is

         12           another bank on Fulton Street that

         13           had come in.  It has no PILOT and

         14           it came in without a PILOT.

         15                  So I believe that it's time

         16           to stop these PILOTs and reach out

         17           to businesses and bring them in

         18           without the PILOTs.  There's no

         19           reason why you can't give them all

         20           the other tax breaks.  They get

         21           other tax breaks.  They get the

         22           sales tax breaks, the bonds, the

         23           tax credits.  They get all kinds

         24           of other things.  They don't need

         25           these PILOTs to go along with all
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          2           these other things.

          3                  This is a disgrace, a

          4           disgrace to humanity, a disgrace

          5           to the people of Hempstead that

          6           you would persist in giving out

          7           all of these PILOTs.  I just feel

          8           that it's time to stop this.

          9                  To me it's just part of

         10           that gentrification plan that is

         11           being pushed on the community,

         12           trying to take over the whole

         13           community, push out the black

         14           community, just as has been done

         15           all across the country.  It's been

         16           done in Harlem.  It's been done in

         17           Brooklyn.  It's all across the

         18           country.  They're taking black

         19           communities and they're pushing

         20           people out, making things harder,

         21           making people homeless, putting

         22           out black businesses, putting out

         23           businesses that serve the black

         24           communities and they are

         25           substituting with these
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          2           highfaluting businesses that are

          3           basically on Welfare.  It's the

          4           welfare of the Hempstead

          5           taxpayers.

          6                  Thank you.

          7                  MR. PAROLA:  Who would like

          8           to be heard?

          9                  MR. RYAN:  A lot of the

         10           comments have been addressed by a

         11           few of the people, well addressed

         12           by a few of the people, regarding

         13           my concerns.  I want to go back a

         14           moment to make sure I'm very clear

         15           on one point.

         16                  Mercedes did put fences up,

         17           they've got trees up, they've done

         18           some things.  They did this

         19           without any kind of guarantee that

         20           there would be a PILOT?  They did

         21           this on their own knowing the risk

         22           factor or were they given some

         23           sort of indication?

         24                  MR. PAROLA:  To be candid,

         25           when an entity comes to us, they
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          2           make their application.  Depending

          3           upon, it's not my role, but the

          4           board will say to you, move

          5           forward, we like what we're

          6           hearing and unless you violate or

          7           you've told us something that is

          8           incorrect, the jobs you're

          9           committing to in our investigation

         10           are not there or something else is

         11           not there, you can look forward to

         12           our favorable full inducement.

         13                  MR. RYAN:  Okay.  The

         14           information, the chronology that

         15           Ms. Garry gave seems to contradict

         16           the answer that Mr. Pettus got

         17           regarding the involvement with the

         18           village.  I thought I heard you

         19           say that the Village of Hempstead

         20           had representatives that were

         21           informed of this project.

         22                  MR. PAROLA:  As far as I

         23           know, and we try to confirm this

         24           in the hearings.  Before or soon

         25           after they make their initial
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          2           presentation -- as soon as I get

          3           the application, what I try to do,

          4           I say, look, you are in the

          5           Village of Hempstead or Rockville

          6           Centre, we don't do it with the

          7           town so much because it's a larger

          8           entity, although sometimes if they

          9           are smart, they will go to the

         10           local -- I will give you an

         11           example.  Zwanger, the guys that

         12           do the CAT scans, they go into

         13           Levittown and they were actually

         14           sent to us by the supervisor.  She

         15           had heard about it and she said

         16           why don't you sit down with the

         17           IDA because they were

         18           complaining -- although you want

         19           to talk about making money, I

         20           think they do very well, but I'm

         21           not in their shoes business-wise,

         22           but they were complaining they

         23           could not make it a go without a

         24           PILOT.  They came to us that way.

         25           Sometimes it works the other way.
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          2                  What I try to do, as soon

          3           as I get a call and we send out

          4           the application, I will say, look,

          5           you have to sit down with the

          6           local administration, you have to

          7           let him know what you're doing

          8           here.  If you can get a letter, so

          9           much the better, but we need input

         10           so we know they are aware of what

         11           you're doing.  Of course,

         12           obviously in many of these cases

         13           they have to go to the building

         14           department, as you well know, so

         15           they are in the administration,

         16           per se.  Maybe not in that

         17           corridor, but we specifically send

         18           them to the administration.

         19                  MR. PETTUS:  So you have a

         20           letter?

         21                  MR. PAROLA:  We didn't get

         22           a letter on these.  According to

         23           the testimony, I don't know, Mike,

         24           you may remember, I do not, I know

         25           at least one of these they
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          2           articulated that, we checked the

          3           record, that they could not get a

          4           letter but that generally speaking

          5           they were favorable.

          6                  MR. RYAN:  Who is "they?"

          7                  MR. PAROLA:  The

          8           administration, mayor's office.  I

          9           don't know who in the mayor's

         10           office.  I am talking off the

         11           cuff.

         12                  MR. PETTUS:  On the record,

         13           I have nothing to do with it.  I

         14           don't know about a meeting.  I

         15           don't know about nothing.

         16                  MR. PAROLA:  I understand.

         17           You're the legislature and that's

         18           the executive branch.

         19                  MR. RYAN:  I'm

         20           uncomfortable with that type of

         21           procedure.

         22                  MR. PAROLA:  I will follow

         23           up.  Try to get you specifics on

         24           which project.  I will be happy to

         25           do that.
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          2                  MR. RYAN:  Moving forward,

          3           I still I think the village board

          4           and the mayor need to make a

          5           formal open hearing, after

          6           discussion, vote, and that without

          7           or blessing the project stops.

          8                  MR. PAROLA:  You know the

          9           law doesn't require.  It's not

         10           happening.

         11                  MR. RYAN:  I asked you

         12           before if we have a moratorium.

         13           You can have the justification.

         14           Over 30 percent of property is off

         15           the tax roll.  We are certainly

         16           unique and need to be treated in a

         17           better and more compassionate

         18           fashion.

         19                  MR. PAROLA:  My comment to

         20           you, send a letter to the board.

         21           They'll consider it.  I can't.

         22           The board will consider it.

         23                  MR. HOLLEY:  The village

         24           have these laws -- my name is

         25           Henry Holley, by the way.  The
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          2           village have these laws and

          3           obligation to us as taxpayers.

          4           Wouldn't the town have the same

          5           thing, since this is the town

          6           government?  IDA is under the town

          7           government and you, the town, are

          8           you representing the town?

          9                  MR. PAROLA:  No.  We have

         10           nothing to do with the town.

         11                  MR. HOLLEY:  I want to be

         12           clear.

         13                  MR. PAROLA:  The town is in

         14           the same status as the village and

         15           the county and the school

         16           district.  We don't represent the

         17           Town of Hempstead.  They have no

         18           more input than do the trustees

         19           here, even though it's the, quote,

         20           unquote, Town of Hempstead IDA,

         21           the only reason it's called the

         22           Town of Hempstead IDA is because

         23           it's our jurisdiction.  By law,

         24           General Municipal Law, we must be

         25           autonomous.  Separate from.
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          2                  MR. HOLLEY:  You are

          3           governed by the state or town?

          4                  MR. OPPENHEIMER:  State

          5           law.

          6                  MR. PAROLA:  General

          7           Municipal Law.  The board is

          8           really subject, as long as they

          9           follow the laws and the legal

         10           opinions and the decisions, they

         11           are autonomous, like any other

         12           elected body.

         13                  MR. HOLLEY:  Who is on your

         14           board now?

         15                  MR. PAROLA:  Paul Conte --

         16           good question.  Initially they are

         17           recommended by the supervisor and

         18           then the town board elects them.

         19           Once they are elected, they must

         20           be autonomous.

         21                  MR. HOLLEY:  The town

         22           governs --

         23                  MR. PAROLA:  No.

         24                  MR. HOLLEY:  Let me finish.

         25           What I'm getting at, you said they
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          2           are recommended by the supervisor

          3           which is the town.  My tax is paid

          4           to the town.  Is that correct?  So

          5           then the town have influence on

          6           the people that are sitting around

          7           the table that are making

          8           decisions about what takes place

          9           in the Village of Hempstead.  Is

         10           that not true?

         11                  The second question is,

         12           what residents of Hempstead is on

         13           your board?

         14                  MR. PAROLA:  Village of

         15           Hempstead?  I will tell you who is

         16           on the board.  Paul Conte --

         17                  MR. HOLLEY:  He doesn't

         18           live in Hempstead.

         19                  MR. PAROLA:  None presently

         20           live in the village, no.

         21                  MS. BORUM:  Why?

         22                  MR. PAROLA:  I have nothing

         23           to do with that.  Let Henry

         24           finish.

         25                  MR. HOLLEY:  The residents
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          2           of the Village of Hempstead who

          3           are the taxpayers have no say-so

          4           about the decisions that are made

          5           at the table.

          6                  MR. PAROLA:  You all made

          7           that argument.  I tried to answer

          8           that.

          9                  Let this young lady go.

         10                  MS. BORUM:  Giving you all

         11           the respect and everything, but I

         12           find an issue with that.  You say

         13           this is why we are all sitting

         14           around now, but it doesn't matter.

         15           Everything that we've said today

         16           does not matter because you, who

         17           do not have to answer to any of

         18           us, has made your decision.

         19                  MR. PAROLA:  Not me.

         20                  MR. PETTUS:  The board

         21           already made the decision.

         22                  MS. BORUM:  The board.  I

         23           am saying "you" because I'm

         24           talking to you.

         25                  MR. PAROLA:  Don't kill the
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          2           messenger.  I just work here.

          3                  MS. BORUM:  You made your

          4           decision already.  You said you

          5           don't answer to our mayor.  You

          6           don't answer to our trustees.

          7                  MR. PAROLA:  The board.

          8                  MS. BORUM:  The board.  Do

          9           you answer to the supervisor of

         10           Hempstead?

         11                  MR. PAROLA:  No.

         12                  MS. BORUM:  So who do you

         13           answer to?

         14                  MR. PAROLA:  I answer to

         15           the board.  The board is

         16           self-controlling.

         17                  MS. BORUM:  They can do

         18           whatever they want to do.

         19                  MR. PAROLA:  Within the

         20           law.

         21                  MR. RYAN:  Who is the

         22           chairperson?

         23                  MR. PAROLA:  Theodore

         24           Sasso.

         25                  MR. RYAN:  And where does
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          2           he reside?

          3                  MR. PAROLA:  He resides --

          4           he just moved.  Glen Head.  I

          5           don't know.  Somewhere up there.

          6                  MR. RYAN:  Any of your

          7           board members not Town of

          8           Hempstead residents?

          9                  MR. PAROLA:  Just Ted.

         10                  MR. RYAN:  He's the

         11           chairperson and doesn't live in

         12           the town.

         13                  MR. PAROLA:  He did when he

         14           was appointed.

         15                  MR. RYAN:  Does that mean

         16           he gets replaced?

         17                  MR. PAROLA:  No.  They are

         18           actually studying that to see, but

         19           apparently the law is such that if

         20           you were on there when -- I don't

         21           know if there is a grandfather.

         22           The decisions go both ways.

         23           Actually, the town attorney and

         24           we've asked our counsel to

         25           consider that.
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          2                  MS. BORUM:  So you are here

          3           in the village, making decisions

          4           for the village, and no one who

          5           lives in the village --

          6                  MR. PAROLA:  Correct.

          7                  MS. BORUM:  -- is allowed

          8           to put any input into that board

          9           or allowed to be on the board for

         10           Hempstead's interest?  No one is

         11           sitting on the board.

         12                  MR. PAROLA:  Correct.  At

         13           the present time.

         14                  MS. BORUM:  At the present

         15           time.

         16                  MR. PAROLA:  Henry was on a

         17           number of years ago.

         18                  MS. BORUM:  I know when

         19           Henry was on.  Since then no one

         20           is there to speak up for

         21           Hempstead.  No.

         22                  MR. BOTTOMS:  Fred, you

         23           said I could have a copy of the

         24           cost benefit analysis and the

         25           schedule of payments.
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          2                  MR. PAROLA:  I let everyone

          3           look at it.  I sent it around.

          4           Apparently, my officer says that

          5           you can look at it, you can't take

          6           it now.

          7                  MR. BOTTOMS:  It states in

          8           here we can have it.

          9                  MR. PAROLA:  I have to

         10           listen to my officer.  I will be

         11           glad to let you look at it.

         12                  MS. GARRY:  Why wouldn't

         13           you give out copies?  It is --

         14                  MR. PAROLA:  Go ahead, sir.

         15                  MR. OPPENHEIMER:  Dan

         16           Oppenheimer.  Just a follow-up

         17           question on the clawbacks or the

         18           annual review provision.

         19                  I understand that the IDA

         20           is governed by the state and no

         21           local entity really has control

         22           over it, but in reviewing the

         23           performance, specific performance

         24           of each PILOT, is there any

         25           outside independent agency or
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          2           individual who sits with you,

          3           works with the IDA to review the

          4           performance of each PILOT?

          5                  MR. PAROLA:  I don't --

          6                  MR. OPPENHEIMER:  Or is it

          7           strictly an internal review?

          8                  MR. PAROLA:  It's internal.

          9           If I'm answering the question

         10           right, stop me if I'm not, when we

         11           do a PILOT, it's done by our

         12           counsel, I work on it, we try to

         13           get input from the Town of

         14           Hempstead people.

         15                  MR. OPPENHEIMER:  I am

         16           referring more to after, once it's

         17           in effect, it's been approved,

         18           ongoing, year one, year two,

         19           looking at job numbers, economic

         20           goals that they've set in applying

         21           for the PILOT, and you review it

         22           each year to make sure that they

         23           are living up to the application,

         24           is there any outside person who

         25           independently reviews the
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          2           performance or is it only done by

          3           the board?

          4                  MR. PAROLA:  No.

          5           Controller's office, Tom

          6           DiNapoli's office pores over it.

          7           I bet administratively for every

          8           hour of a day, we will spend a

          9           third of that time, 20 minutes,

         10           complying with state requirements

         11           in terms of submissions, in terms

         12           of questions they ask.  It's

         13           endless.  We answer to Tom

         14           DiNapoli's office, as well as a

         15           specific entity that has been

         16           created to oversee us.

         17                  MR. OPPENHEIMER:  I know

         18           he's had some concerns about the

         19           performance of --

         20                  MR. PAROLA:  IDAs, yes.  I

         21           am happy to say mostly upstate,

         22           not downstate.  But, yes.  Some

         23           are valid.  We go back a long

         24           time.  I've spoken to him at

         25           length about it.
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          2                  MR. OPPENHEIMER:  Any local

          3           entity does that or just the

          4           state?

          5                  MR. PAROLA:  All state.

          6                  Yes, sir.  Identify

          7           yourself.

          8               MR. RAY:  Brandon Ray,

          9           trustee, Hempstead Public Schools

         10           Board of Education.

         11                  Your name?

         12                  MR. PAROLA:  Fred Parola.

         13                  MR. RAY:  Mr. Parola --

         14                  MR. PAROLA:  Fred is fine.

         15                  MR. RAY:  Fred, I believe

         16           all my residents here, village

         17           officials, are for economic

         18           development of any kind, anything

         19           that can produce, bring in tax

         20           revenues, that's the only way Don,

         21           Mayor Hall, Perry can survive.

         22           That's the main hub.  Every day I

         23           have to go out to the public to

         24           produce a budget to help educate

         25           our children and ask for any type
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          2           of increase, we try our best to

          3           keep these taxes as long as we

          4           possibly can.

          5                  Here is a question.  The

          6           Key Food that might be coming up,

          7           do they have a PILOT of any kind?

          8                  MR. PAROLA:  Nobody has

          9           come to us.  Nothing.

         10                  MR. RAY:  They are going to

         11           pay the full gamut.  They are

         12           producing a direct product,

         13           hopefully some jobs in food

         14           service.  I used to work for

         15           Hyundai as a salesperson when I

         16           was in college.  I know they are

         17           making money.  Me as a board

         18           member, I need every penny I can

         19           possibly get to help spread the

         20           burden off of all my taxpayers.  I

         21           don't want them to constantly feel

         22           this burden.

         23                  So while we definitely are

         24           about economic progress, economic

         25           development, economic commerce, we
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          2           can't afford to lose any penny

          3           being put towards the tax roll to

          4           spread this burden.  We need tax

          5           revenue.  Like I said, I

          6           respect -- Mercedes Benz, that

          7           would be a huge look for us.  With

          8           the Hyundai dealership, huge look.

          9                  Ms. Garry said about -- she

         10           does a great publication, I

         11           remember this publication.  As

         12           good neighbors, two million of the

         13           town's buildings are off the tax

         14           rolls of the town.  Is that

         15           accurate?

         16                  MR. PAROLA:  I don't know.

         17                  MR. RAY:  This building and

         18           200 Franklin?  We are being good

         19           neighbors to our town.  We are

         20           asking our town to be good

         21           neighbors to us and keep as much

         22           revenue and economic growth as

         23           possible.

         24                  Also, I would say you said

         25           about the Toyota, that's still
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          2           owned by the same company

          3           Millennium, Frank Staloopy (ph.),

          4           and everything?

          5                  MR. PAROLA:  Just so you

          6           know, there are seven car

          7           dealership deals, four in your

          8           community, one in Valley Stream.

          9           It's like a wash.

         10                  MR. RAY:  We are saying as

         11           residents, keep our pennies here.

         12                  MR. PAROLA:  I hear you.

         13                  MR. RAY:  We can't afford

         14           it.  I would love to get the

         15           information on how many apartment

         16           buildings.  You approved 590-600

         17           building.  All that revenue is

         18           off.

         19                  MR. PAROLA:  It's still --

         20           they are still paying taxes.

         21                  MR. RAY:  But they are

         22           getting a break.  They get a deal.

         23                  MR. PAROLA:  Yes.

         24                  MR. RAY:  They are

         25           generating a lot of revenue.  Like
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          2           I said, I can't keep going to my

          3           public, and I'm really pleading

          4           for consideration when it comes to

          5           -- when it comes to abatements and

          6           deals, come to the people first,

          7           which I guess we're doing in this

          8           hearing, but to truly be an ear to

          9           influence when it comes to the

         10           board's decision making.  We can't

         11           afford no more deals.

         12                  MR. PAROLA:  I have a

         13           thought.  It's not that we're not

         14           listening, but here is my thought.

         15           One, my observation is that

         16           Hempstead is impacted pretty

         17           heavily.  You're right there.  No

         18           argument there, a lot of folks

         19           come here.  Two, you are impacted

         20           by taxes, you got special issues,

         21           minority community, all of that.

         22                  What I would suggest is

         23           this, maybe Don and you can get

         24           together with your other trustees,

         25           and based upon what you've all
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          2           said, certainly we can go out of

          3           our way more as a board, or maybe

          4           just staff if I'm directed to do

          5           so, but I would ask them to let me

          6           do it, that as soon as I get an

          7           application in Hempstead, that I

          8           make Don or the other trustees, as

          9           well as the administration, aware

         10           of it so they come to you and have

         11           to discuss it with you, at least

         12           your argument is valid.  It's not

         13           by law, but I say more effectively

         14           it's better that we're talking

         15           together than following the formal

         16           legalities, which being a lawyer

         17           are BS, excuse my French.

         18                  If you will send me a

         19           letter formally requesting that,

         20           that based upon the special

         21           problems this community has and

         22           the impact, send us a letter

         23           saying can we have more notice

         24           from the board when there is an

         25           issue in the village.
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          2                  MR. RYAN:  That is a step,

          3           but I would rather have a leap.

          4                  MR. PAROLA:  Don, we're not

          5           going to change the law, per se.

          6                  MR. RYAN:  But we could.

          7                  MR. PAROLA:  You could.  My

          8           board will not look favorably to

          9           that.  At least let's make some

         10           steps.  Let's do that.  At least

         11           then you'll have notice and maybe

         12           get more out of them.

         13                  Hopefully this meeting

         14           produces something from a positive

         15           vein going forward, even if you

         16           don't feel good about the result

         17           that my board will probably take

         18           here, obviously.  Let's try that.

         19           At least you will be aware more.

         20                  MR. RYAN:  I think I am

         21           going to try something a little

         22           bit more heavy-handed.

         23                  MR. PAROLA:  Do it, but

         24           mention my aspects.  Life in our

         25           system is a compromise even though
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          2           nobody compromises anymore.

          3                  I am sorry.  I cut you off,

          4           but I wanted to get that out.

          5                  MR. RAY:  I think the

          6           payment we saw was 248.

          7                  MR. OPPENHEIMER:  It's 247.

          8                  MR. RAY:  So how much are

          9           they saving with that deal?

         10                  MR. PAROLA:  That is what

         11           the current taxes are, period.

         12           That is what they're paying.

         13                  MR. RYAN:  That is on an

         14           empty building.

         15                  MR. PAROLA:  I'm not too

         16           sure of that.  The building is up.

         17                  MR. RYAN:  In real dollars,

         18           I think it's almost a million

         19           bucks they're saving.

         20                  MR. PAROLA:  We don't do

         21           the taxes.  We can only take the

         22           taxes based upon what the assessor

         23           does.

         24                  MR. RAY:  New York State

         25           assessor?
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          2                  MR. PAROLA:  No.  County

          3           assessor.  They assess buildings.

          4           We don't.  We have nothing to do

          5           with that.  If they are getting a

          6           break --

          7                  MS. BORUM:  Why isn't it

          8           taken into consideration before

          9           you give the PILOT?  Because this

         10           way you would know exactly what

         11           they're gaining or what their loss

         12           is.

         13                  MR. PAROLA:  I don't

         14           understand.

         15                  MS. BORUM:  Instead of you

         16           saying now it's up to the assessor

         17           because you have no idea how much

         18           they're saving.  Why can't you

         19           have the assessor give you numbers

         20           and figures before you agree on a

         21           PILOT so you can have figures on

         22           what the gain is?

         23                  MR. PAROLA:  We do.  We do

         24           try to talk to them about what it

         25           might be down the line.  We try to
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          2           get that input.

          3                  MS. BORUM:  But with this

          4           you don't have figures, what he

          5           just asked, the trustee just

          6           asked.

          7                  MR. PAROLA:  It's

          8           incorporated into the PILOT.  In

          9           other words, we try to reflect

         10           with the increases that go

         11           forward.  In other words, there's

         12           no PILOT benefit if you're not

         13           basing it upon what their current

         14           taxes are.  You know what I mean?

         15           They are not going to come to us,

         16           you're getting a break, your taxes

         17           aren't 247, they really should be

         18           500,000.  Well, they're not coming

         19           to us if I start at 500,000.

         20                  MS. BORUM:  So you do the

         21           lower?

         22                  MR. PAROLA:  No, we don't.

         23           We'll do the PILOT, but it's based

         24           on what the assessor uses as the

         25           tax.
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          2                  MR. HOLLEY:  What was the

          3           tax assessment amount before they

          4           got the PILOT?

          5                  MR. PAROLA:  I'm sorry?

          6                  MR. HOLLEY:  What was the

          7           tax assessment amount before they

          8           got the PILOT?

          9                  MR. PAROLA:  The current

         10           taxes are exactly now, and they're

         11           up to date, as to what they are

         12           paying right this minute.

         13                  MS. BORUM:  What?

         14                  MR. PAROLA:  247.  That is

         15           what the current taxes are.

         16                  MR. BOTTOMS:  Can I say --

         17               MR. HOLLEY:  It hasn't gone

         18           up?

         19                  MR. PAROLA:  It reflects

         20           the latest.

         21                  MS. GARRY:  The building is

         22           going to be far more.  It is going

         23           to be far more.  I have to make an

         24           objection to your procedures,

         25           Mr. Parola.
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          2                  My name is Katherine Garry.

          3           I am outraged that your secretary

          4           or assistant has refused to give

          5           Mr. Bottoms the copy of the cost

          6           analysis and the copy of the

          7           schedule of payments for these two

          8           projects.  She's standing right

          9           here.  She's too busy to make a

         10           copy.

         11                  MR. PAROLA:  That's not the

         12           reason.  It's not adopted yet.

         13                  MS. GARRY:  The schedule,

         14           the proposed schedule of payments

         15           has been proposed.  There is a

         16           proposed schedule and the costs

         17           and benefits, it says it's

         18           available at the hearing.

         19                  MR. PAROLA:  It is

         20           available.

         21                  MS. GARRY:  Available to

         22           take home.  You can't expect

         23           people to figure out whether that

         24           is a proper analysis sitting here

         25           trying to discuss this.  I think
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          2           it's a disgrace.  I can't believe

          3           that a man in your position would

          4           stoop to that level to prevent the

          5           people --

          6                  MR. PAROLA:  Your hyperbole

          7           is pretty intense.

          8                  MS. GARRY:  I didn't ask

          9           you to interrupt me.

         10                  MR. PAROLA:  I thought it

         11           was appropriate, with all due

         12           respect.

         13                  MS. GARRY:  I think this is

         14           totally outrageous under the

         15           Freedom --

         16                  MR. PAROLA:  You expressed

         17           your concern.  Thank you.

         18                  MS. GARRY:  -- under the

         19           Freedom of Information Act, to be

         20           treated this way.  For people to

         21           come to a meeting, be told in an

         22           announcement that it is available

         23           and you say you will pass it

         24           around while everyone is speaking.

         25           You don't even have time to read
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          2           it if you want to hear what

          3           everybody else has to say.

          4                  MR. PAROLA:  I follow the

          5           law.

          6                  MS. GARRY:  No.  The law

          7           does not require that.

          8                  MR. PAROLA:  Reasonable

          9           people can disagree.

         10                  MS. GARRY:  The law does

         11           not prevent you from giving copies

         12           to the people at this meeting.  It

         13           does not prevent you from doing

         14           that.  You have that option.  You

         15           have an option to do it free of

         16           charge.  And most of the time when

         17           there are public hearings,

         18           documents that are to be discussed

         19           at a public hearing are given free

         20           of charge.

         21                  MR. PAROLA:  Okay.  Thank

         22           you.

         23                  MS. GARRY:  You are acting

         24           in bad faith, is basically what

         25           I'm saying.
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          2                  MR. RYAN:  Thank you.

          3                  MR. PAROLA:  I certainly

          4           listened respectfully to your

          5           comments.

          6                  It's 10:26.  I am closing

          7           both 927, as well as 110 Graham

          8           public hearings sine die.

          9                  (Time noted:  10:26 a.m.)

         10               *     *     *     *     *
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